
 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 
1 

The Meeting of the Long Range Planning Committee of the City of Onalaska was called to order 1 
at 5:36 p.m. on Thursday, October 15, 2015.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced 2 
and a notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken, with the following members present:  Debbie Clarkin, Gary Lass, Jim 5 
Warren 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Planner/Zoning Inspector Katie Aspenson, Land Use and Development Director 8 
Brea Grace.  Brad Hentschel of Short Elliott Hendrickson participated via telephone. 9 
 10 
Excused Absences:  Kristen Odegaard, Dana Fredrickson, Jennifer Brown, Ken Schmocker 11 
 12 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting 13 
 14 
The minutes from the September 10 Long Range Planning Committee meeting could not be 15 
approved as there was no quorum present. 16 
 17 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes per individual) 18 
 19 
As there was no one from the public present, Item 4 was addressed next. 20 
 21 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 22 
 23 
Item 4 – Review and discuss public comments and feedback from the Open House on the 24 
draft 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update 25 
 26 
Katie said more than 40 citizens attended the open house held on September 30.  A number of 27 
comments were submitted on September 30, and more were received after that.  Katie asked 28 
those in attendance if they had any feedback. 29 
 30 
Debbie said more than one person had told her they did not believe there was sufficient 31 
information regarding the development of future arts in the community.  Debbie also said she 32 
had been told the city does not have a true Main Street, and therefore perhaps the city should not 33 
spend its time and money in that area.  Debbie said that this individual does not believe the City 34 
of Onalaska truly has a historic downtown.   Debbie also added she had received positive 35 
feedback from the other individuals who attended the open house. 36 
 37 
Brea addressed the public comments on the handout, including one that states the Town of 38 
Holland has participated in intergovernmental activities with the City of Onalaska, including the 39 
Cooperative Recycling Agreement, recycling brochure, and Shared Ride service.  The Town of 40 
Holland will be participating in the Coulee Region Joint Municipal Court, and Brea said this 41 
information should be updated in the Intergovernmental chapter.  Brea also referred to a 42 
Reviewed 10/21/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 
2 

comment asking why Rosebud Island was not included within the boundaries of the plan map. 43 
 44 
Katie said Rosebud Island, which is located close to Brice Prairie, is not part of the City of 45 
Onalaska. 46 
 47 
Brea noted the same individual had said they did not see any development of the State Trunk 48 
Highway 35 overlooks off Quincy and Troy streets as part of the overall Comprehensive Plan.  49 
Brea said that the parks and recreational section will be examined to ensure that there is 50 
sufficient information about maintaining and upgrading these facilities.  Brea noted there will be 51 
work done as part of the 2016 STH 35 reconstruction project and said that this would be 52 
addressed in the Comprehensive Plan.  Brea said the same individual also asked if the 53 
environmentally sensitive area in the bluffs will have a name.  Brea said she is interpreting this to 54 
mean the environmentally sensitive areas off the Land Use Map.  The individual also asked if 55 
this area is large enough to become a park or park-like entity, how the area will be managed, and 56 
if it is feasible to have the area made part of the state trail or state park system and still be within 57 
the corporate limits of Onalaska.  Brea noted the Greenway Plan discusses the preservation of 58 
these areas, and she also noted that Green Coulee Park had been expanded within the last three 59 
months because land had been transferred from Elmwood with assistance from Mississippi 60 
Valley Conservancy.  Brea noted that the city had recently updated its agreement with MVC and 61 
the two will partner together for another five years.  As land becomes available, MVC will assist 62 
with negotiations, acquisitions and preparation before it becomes city property. 63 
 64 
Katie said the latest land transfer is shown on the map in the brighter green of “Parks & Open 65 
Space.”  Katie also noted that much of the land the city just acquired on behalf of MVC is in the 66 
environmental corridor area (land that has a 30-percent slope). 67 
 68 
Debbie asked if the Comprehensive Plan includes a strategy regarding the Greenway Plan. 69 
 70 
Brea said the continued cooperative agreement with MVC likely is not in the Comprehensive 71 
Plan, so it may be added as a strategy. 72 
 73 
Brad read the following Policy/Recommendation from Chapter 6:  “Continue to consult 74 
Onalaska Central Greenway Master Plan to identify and protect key linkages and provide 75 
greenway corridors and connections within Onalaska and surrounding communities.” 76 
 77 
Katie referred to an objective under Goal No. 5 in the Utilities/Community Facilities section, 78 
which reads:  “Continuing to devote resources to first maintain and improve existing park and 79 
recreation areas and then to develop any new parks and recreation areas.”  Katie said she is 80 
unsure if there is a specific reference to the city’s partnership with MVC and committee 81 
members said they would like this included in the Comprehensive Plan. 82 
 83 
Katie asked Brad to include verbiage regarding the city’s partnership with MVC and the goal of 84 
Reviewed 10/21/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 
3 

continued success in acquiring land that will lend to the implementation of the Greenway Master 85 
Plan. 86 
 87 
Brea referred to a comment asking that artists be invited to begin a co-op gallery. 88 
 89 
Debbie said the committee had discussed encouraging more public art in the Comprehensive 90 
Plan. 91 
 92 
Brad referred to a policy in the Agricultural, Natural & Cultural Resources chapter that reads:  93 
“Consider opportunities to develop key themes and identities for the downtown, including but 94 
not limited to a public art program.”  Brad said the committee had discussed identifying what 95 
the city’s downtown is, but did not get more specific than what the policy states about public art. 96 
 97 
Brea referred to the Implementation chapter and suggested adding a new strategy of considering 98 
the creation of a public art program.  Brea also suggested encouraging land uses for performing 99 
arts such as dance, musicians and galleries and that the City can make sure its zoning allows 100 
those types of uses in the downtown area. 101 
 102 
Debbie said there has to be an individual who wants to spearhead developing the arts in 103 
downtown Onalaska and stated she does not believe city government should facilitate this.  104 
However, Debbie said she believes zoning needs to be available and the city should facilitate the 105 
process if there are individuals looking to develop the arts in the downtown district. 106 
 107 
Gary said Centering Onalaska has attempted to be conducive to art. 108 
 109 
Jim said he believes there needs to be flexibility to provide opportunities for the arts. 110 
 111 
Brea referred to a comment stating that Main Street needs another restaurant now that Angelini’s 112 
has moved to a new location on STH 35.  The same individual also asked that businesses be 113 
given the opportunity to remain open later, the waterfront be developed, train whistles be 114 
quieted, and docks, fishing, log rolling, kayaking, canoeing and paddle boarding be added.  Brea 115 
said much of this falls under the city’s Waterfront Plan and noted the Comprehensive Plan 116 
includes a quiet zone discussion. 117 
 118 
Brad noted that many sole proprietor businesses like to have their evenings free.  Brad said some 119 
communities with a business improvement district hold a monthly event such as staying open 120 
late on a weeknight.  Brad also said businesses might be encouraged to stay open late if the Main 121 
Street extension that is part of the Great River Landing Project comes to fruition. 122 
 123 
Brea then addressed two comments regarding duplexes, one of which reads:  “I think the 124 
duplexes that are being built in the city are so out of place.  If the city cannot change the zoning 125 
to single-family dwellings within a mile radius of Main Street, it needs to put something in place 126 
Reviewed 10/21/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 
4 

about design features.  Keep Onalaska quaint.  All you see in the duplex are large garage doors.  127 
If you want to keep Onalaska historical looking, you have to change the zoning within a mile 128 
radius of Main.  The Onalaska Historical Society is behind me on this.  Please listen.  Drive 129 
down Main Street toward the cemetery, look on the left side of the road two blocks down [and] 130 
you will see what I mean.”  The second comment reads as follows:  “I feel that there should not 131 
be duplexes and homes with large garages within the older part of Onalaska that contains homes 132 
built when Onalaska was young.”  Brea noted she had had extensive conversations regarding 133 
these two pieces both prior to and at the open house.  Brea said she attempted to determine 134 
whether the concerns revolved around the number of occupants and number of dwelling, single-135 
family homes versus duplexes, or design features.  Brea said the concerns seem to be about 136 
design features and distributed to committee members a section of the Zoning Code, which 137 
includes language in the aforementioned area. 138 
 139 
Brea referred to Chapter 3 (“Special Districts”), Part 5 (“Form-Based Overlay Districts”), 140 
Section 13-3-15 (“Form Districts”) and suggested adding a comment to the Comprehensive Plan 141 
that recommends the Plan Commission update this section.  An implementation strategy would 142 
be to ask the Plan Commission to review the boundary of this district and determine if it is 143 
appropriate.  The Main Street house referred to in the public comments is located two blocks 144 
away from the district boundary.  Brea referred to (2)(c) in Section 13-3-16 (“Downtown 145 
Residential Neighborhoods Building Envelope Standards”), which reads:  “Garages must be 146 
sited for access on an alley if an alley is present.  If an alley is not present, a garage may be 147 
accessed off the street.  However, if a garage door faces the build-to line, it must not dominate 148 
the street frontage.  Therefore, it shall not exceed 33 percent of the frontage.”  Brea said she 149 
believes this applies to the situation of the house on Main Street, and this would not be allowed if 150 
the house was located in the district.  Brea suggested that the Plan Commission should re-151 
examine the limits of the district, the wording and the setbacks in this section of the Zoning 152 
Code. 153 
 154 
Brea said a garage for a two-unit condominium could not exceed 33 percent of the frontage if it 155 
was located in the form-based overlay district and recommended establishing an implementation 156 
strategy under Housing that states the form-based overlay district should be re-reviewed and 157 
perhaps altered. 158 
 159 
Brea said it is essential to maintain the character of the city’s older neighborhoods, adding she 160 
believes this is the intent of the form-based overlay district. 161 
 162 
Brad said the Housing goals section could include language that encourages the Plan 163 
Commission to review the form-based overlay district.  This could be a stand-alone policy or 164 
recommendation. 165 
 166 
Item 5 – Discussion and consideration of draft 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update 167 
 168 
Reviewed 10/21/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 
5 

Brea said Katie has begun working on an Executive Summary and Brad will edit it.  The 169 
committee will review the executive summary at its next meeting. 170 
 171 
Brad suggested placing the Executive Summary before the introduction; specifically, 172 
immediately following the table of contents before Chapter 1. 173 
 174 
Katie said the executive summary will be a maximum of two pages and include photographs.  175 
The executive summary will begin with a summary of how the process began.  It also will have 176 
the city’s vision.  The subsequent sections will be tight summaries regarding the different 177 
chapters. 178 
 179 
Katie noted that Dana had shared with her some suggestions, including highlighting some of the 180 
new features that been constructed (e.g., Northern Hills and Irving Pertzsch elementary schools) 181 
as well as highlighting the blue ribbon designation the Onalaska School District had received.  182 
Katie also noted that staff is taking new photographs and said the existing photographs in the 183 
Comprehensive Plan still can be edited. 184 
 185 
Katie said she had spoken with Police Chief Jeff Trotnic, and the 12,000 calls encompass all 186 
service calls which includes but not limited to traffic stops, school calls, index crimes (burglary, 187 
assault, etc.) and all other calls made by the public and police officers. 188 
 189 
Brea suggested referencing the Police Department’s annual report, which lists the calls the 190 
department receives and the types of services it provides. 191 
 192 
Jim said he believes including the number of calls misrepresents what the Police Department 193 
does and suggested deleting the total number. 194 
 195 
Katie referred to the Future Land Use Map and noted that the long range planning area is 196 
defined.  The dotted future planning boundary also has been included.  Katie referred to the 2015 197 
Residential Assessment Values Map and noted that some of the original values had been merged 198 
together.   199 
 200 
Brea noted that legal counsel has reviewed the Comprehensive Plan and said she and Katie will 201 
bring draft changes to the next meeting.  Brea said legal counsel is encouraging more 202 
specifications in the Economic Development chapter and future growth areas.  Legal counsel 203 
also is asking that themes from the survey be incorporated and technological changes such as 204 
drones be examined.  Brea said recommendations by legal counsel will be discussed at the next 205 
meeting, at which time the committee likely will make a recommendation to the Plan 206 
Commission.  The Plan Commission has scheduled the formal public hearing for its Tuesday, 207 
December 15 meeting. 208 
 209 
Katie said the Long Range Planning Committee will meet again at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, 210 
Reviewed 10/21/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 
6 

November 5. 211 
 212 
Brad asked committee members to be thinking of a slogan for the Comprehensive Plan for the 213 
next meeting. 214 
 215 
Adjournment 216 
 217 
Motion by Gary, second by Jim, to adjourn at 6:39 p.m. 218 
 219 
On voice vote, motion carried. 220 
 221 
 222 
Recorded By: 223 
 224 
Kirk Bey 225 

Reviewed 10/21/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 


